
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

     BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

October 3, 2024 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

 OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

CLOSED SESSION: 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Significant exposure

to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Gov. Code Section 54956.9 - One potential case.

OPEN SESSION: 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for September 19, 2024

B. Receive and Ratify the Check Warrant List

C. Approve Award of Contract to Amerine – Center Pivot #3 and #4 Replacement Projects

D. Approve Award of Contract to Sanbell – CM & Inspection for Sewer Main Rehabilitation Program
2024  

E. Approve Award of Contract to Alpha CM – CM & Inspection for Smith Ranch PS Electrical Upgrades 
and PS Lighting Projects  

F. Approve Supplemental Will-Serve Letter for Legacy at Lucas Valley (Talus Reserve) 

G. Approve Notice of Completion – John Duckett Force Main Access Structures  

H. Approve Notice of Completion – Standby Generator System for Minor Pump Stations 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through E. 

4:30 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:00 PM 

4:05 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


October 3, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through H. 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager Report - verbal

5. APPROVAL OF UNILATERAL CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS FOR THE SECONDARY
TREATMENT UPGRADE AND RECYCLED WATER EXPANSION (STPURWE) PROJECT.

Board to review and approve the STPURWE Unilateral Change orders to Meyers and Sons Construction.

6. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc
Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports

2. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

Development Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, San Francisco
Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

3. NITZBERG
a. Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee
San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee,
FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

7. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

5:50 PM 

4:45 PM 

5:00 PM 

5:30 PM 

2



October 3, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

8. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

9. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: OCTOBER 17 AND NOVEMBER 7, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before  September 30, 2024  4:00 pm I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held  on  October 3, 2024 at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas 
Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: September 26, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, 
San Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), if you need special assistance 
to participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting. Notification prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable disability-
related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services, to help ensure accessibility to 

this meeting. 

6:00 PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:10 PM 

3



 

 
 

 

10/3/2024 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



 

 
 

 

10/3/2024 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

 Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



 

 

 Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: October 3, 2024 

Re: Award of Contract to Amerine Systems Inc. for 
Center Pivots #3 and #4 Replacement Projects 

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No     (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the awards of contract to Amerine Systems Inc. for the following projects: 

1. Center Pivot #3 Replacement for $175,000. 
2. Center Pivot #4 Replacement for $180,000. 

 
BACKGROUND 
On September 6, 2024, and September 16, 2024, the District opened bids for Center Pivot #3 and 
Center Pivot #4 replacement projects, and Amerine Systems Inc. submitted the only bid for each 
project in the amount of $175,000 and $180,000, respectively. Staff reviewed the bids and found 
that Amerine Systems is a responsive and responsible bidder. The engineer’s estimate is 
$175,000 for each project. 
 
Center pivots #3 and #4 constitute two of the five circle irrigation systems (waterwheels) 
constructed in 1983 to water 40 acres of pasture with treated effluent from the District’s storage 
ponds. The irrigation systems, which the District last upgraded in 2005, are vital in managing 
water balance during the discharge prohibition period of June to October each year, as required in 
the District’s NPDES permit. 
 
Amerine Systems was also the contractor for the replacement of center pivots #1 (2023) and #2 
(2020) as two separate projects. Both systems have been running without major issues ever 
since. The plans and specifications developed by staff for center pivots #3 and  #4 require 
compatibility with #1 and #2 systems for ease of operation and acquisition of spare parts. Staff 
anticipates including the replacement of Center Pivot #5 in the next few years. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Total of $355,000 for both projects, which have a combined budget of $500,000 for FY 2024-25. A 
$20,000 portion of the total budget will be allocated for inspection services. The remaining 

Item Number______3C__________ 

GM Review   ______CP__________ 

 

26

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

$125,000 will be transferred to the Smith Ranch Pump Station Electrical Upgrades (20300-09) 
and Pump Station Site Lighting, Safety, & Security Improvements (21300-04) projects to cover 
construction management and inspection services. 
 

 
Figure 1. Location Map 

27



Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: October 3, 2024 
Re: Award of Contract for Construction Management and Inspection Services to 

Sanbell  
Item Type:  Consent     X  Action   Information Other             . 
Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No (See attached) Not Applicable        . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the award of a contract for Construction Management and Inspection Services 
to Sanbell for the Sewer Main Rehabilitation 2024 (with Inflow & Infiltration Reduction) project in 
the amount of $238,618. 

BACKGROUND 
On September 20, 2024, District staff received the following proposals in response to the Request 
for Proposals (RFP) for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the Sewer Main 
Rehabilitation 2024 (with Inflow & Infiltration Reduction) project issued on August 8, 2024: 

1. Sanbell, formerly Bellecci & Associates (Concord) for $238,618
2. Alpha CM (Napa) for $261,200

District staff evaluated the proposals and found that while both consultants are qualified for the 
job, Sanbell best meets the District requirements. The construction of the project has been 
awarded to Pacific Trenchless in the amount of $1,967,545.45 with a contract duration of 180 
calendar days, and tentatively scheduled to start in October 2024. Sanbell proposed to provide 
full-time inspection services for the duration of the construction of the project. Their project team 
will primarily consist of Severin Ott, PE, for inspection and Robert Broestl, PE, for construction 
management. Both have been involved in the previous sewer main rehabilitation project of the 
same magnitude with successful results. 

Staff reviewed Sanbell’s fee estimate and deemed the proposal reasonable. The fee proposal is 
approximately 12% of the construction cost, which is within the standard of the industry pricing for 
similar services. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

Item Number_____3D___________ 
GM Review   _____CP___________ 

28

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 
 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Not to exceed $238,618. This is within the remaining budget for Sewer Main Rehabilitation 2024 
and Inflow & Infiltration Reduction projects for FY 2024-25 after construction costs. 

29



 

 

2290 Diamond Blvd., Suite 100 925 • 685 • 4569 7077 Koll Center Pkwy., Suite 210 

Concord, CA 94520 bellecci.com Pleasanton, CA 94566 

 
September 16, 2024 
 
 
Mr. Michael P. Cortez, PE 
District Engineer 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitation District 
101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 
San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
Subject:  Proposal for Sewer Main Rehabilitation 2024 (With Inflow & Infiltration Reduction)–
Job Nos. 24460-06 & 24460-07 
 
Dear Mr. Cortez: 
 
We welcome this opportunity to submit this proposal to the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
(District) for the Sewer Main Rehabilitation 2024 (With Inflow & Infiltration Reduction)–Job 
Nos. 24460-06 & 24460-07.  As with our previous projects with the District, Bellecci will comply 
with all labor compliance requirements. 
 
The District is already familiar with Bellecci’s qualifications for CM and Inspection from working 
with us on several projects over the past few years.  We propose to have Severin Ott, PE as the 
Resident Engineering and Senior Public Works for the project and I will support Severin with 
Construction Management for the project.  
 
Attached for your review is a copy of our project understanding and approach and budget for 
the Sewer Main Rehabilitation 2024 –Job Nos. 24460-06 & 24460-07. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please call me at (925) 318-2071.  We look 
forward to continuing working with you. 
 
Sincerely, 
SANBELL (BELLECCI)  
 
 
 
Robert Broestl, PE 
Principal Engineer I 

30



PROJECT UNDERSTANDING & APPROACH 

CM & Inspection for Sewer Rehabilitation 

 

Project Understanding 

 
The Las Gallinas Valley Sewer District (LGVSD) is requesting a Construction 

Management firm experienced in providing complete construction management 

services including: construction management, and inspection, budget controls, 

scheduling, contract administration, construction engineering, quality assurance, 

project records and close-out documentation for the Sewer Main 

Rehabilitation 2024 (With Inflow & Infiltration Reduction)–Job Nos. 

24460-06 & 24460-07 (180 Calendar Days).  The project includes: 

• Rehabilitation of approximately 5,180 lineal feet of existing 6 and 8-inch sewer 

mains and trunk sewers at the following locations: Heatherstone Dr, Blackstone 

Dr, Peachstone Dr, Miller Creek Rd, Corte Miguel Easement, Las Gallinas Ave 

Easement, Heather Wy, Hibiscus Wy, Elena Cir, Trellis Dr, Garden Ave, Corrillo Dr, 

Estancia Wy, and Mt Lassen Dr. 

• Rehabilitation of approximately 30 manholes with lining method. 

• Replacement of approximately 8 rodding inlets with new manholes. 

• Replacement and reconnection of approximately 103 lower laterals. 

• Point repairs at 7 locations. 

 

 
Project Approach 

 
We anticipate that we are being retained to provide turnkey Construction Management services to 

LGVSD, with responsibility to conduct and provide the services necessary to ensure a successful and timely 

completion of the planned construction. Sanbell (Bellecci) is proposing an experienced team consisting of 

highly qualified personnel with extensive prior Construction Management, Administration and Support 

services experience. Based on our recent and past experience working with LGVSD on the Sewer Main 

Rehabilitation projects in similar neighborhoods, we understand the importance of keeping the public 

informed about the project. That is why we will ensure that affected residences receive a written notice of 

work to be performed and will meet with them as required to ensure the best public relations during 

construction of the project. 

 
We anticipate that the services our team will provide will include, but not be limited to the following: 

 
A. PRE-CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

 Set-up the project files in a Caltrans / LGVSD format 

 Perform a schedule analysis of the contractor’s schedule to review and evaluate the schedule to ensure 

it will be suited for the scope of work 

 Conduct the pre-construction meeting with the Contractor, the LGVSD and project stakeholders 

 Track and review the Contractor’s submittals with some assistance from the design team and respond 

 Track and respond to Contractor Request for Information (RFI) 

 Review and coordinate with the Contractor, City of San Rafael, Marin County Staff and other 

jurisdictions as necessary throughout the project 

 Perform a preconstruction site inspection of the project site to document existing conditions 

 Coordinate lower lateral replacement with District, contractor, and property owner(s) 

 Coordinate lower lateral pre-inspection requirements with the contractor 

 Assist the District in obtaining access agreements from the lower lateral property owners 

 

31



PROJECT UNDERSTANDING & APPROACH 

CM & Inspection for Sewer Rehabilitation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. CONSTRUCTION PHASE (Construction Contract 180 Calendar Days) 

 
 Provide full-time inspection services for the duration of the construction of the project to ensure that 

provisions of the contract documents are being fulfilled 

 Prepare daily inspection reports documenting observed construction activities 

 Take daily digital photographs as documentation of construction 

 Document changes in the field to compare to the Contractor record drawing markups 

 Measure quantities of items constructed and prepare progress payment applications 

 Conduct weekly site project meetings with the Contractor and hold additional meetings as necessary 

with the Contractor and other stakeholders 

 Coordinate with appropriate District staff to discuss project issues 

 Assist with public relations for residents and local business outreach regarding the project 

 Act as liaison in the field between Contractor, District, Property Owners, and representatives from 

Marin County, City of San Rafael, PG&E and all other utility owners throughout all phases of 

construction 

 Provide the District with copies of the construction management documentation 

 Review the Contractor’s schedule and notify the District of changes that affects the on-time completion 

of the project 

 Prepare weekly reports of working days and provide them to the Contractor 

 Review, comment and facilitate responses to requests for information (RFI) 

 Inspect the Contractor’s proposed sewer bypass plan regarding sewer capacity, infiltration, and pump 
capacity 

 Monitor the work for compliance with environmental controls such as dust, water quality, noise 

and traffic requirements. 

 Monitor and enforce Construction Contractor’s compliance with SWCP/BMPs 

 Facilitate utility conflicts coordination and resolution with the District, the applicable utility owners 

and the Construction Contractor 

 Coordinate final project inspection, punch list, close out and as built plans 
 

C. QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 

 Coordinate quality assurance materials testing with the District’s material testing company to verify 

compliance of the work with the contract documents 

 

32



PROJECT UNDERSTANDING & APPROACH 

CM & Inspection for Sewer Rehabilitation 

 Review compaction and other test reports submitted by others to substantiate contract compliance 

 Compare Certificates of Compliance or source release tags with the applicable delivered materials at the 
project site 

 Assist LGVSD’s Labor Compliance consultant with certified payroll submitted by Contractor 

D. POST-CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
 

 Prepare initial punch list and consolidate comments into final punch list 

 Perform final project inspection 

 Prepare final progress payment for the project including the costs of all bid items constructed and approved 

change orders 

 Finalize project accounting 

 Oversee completion of record drawings (as-built plans) 

 Transmit all project files and record drawings to the LGVSD for archiving 

 
Sanbell (Bellecci) will have responsibility to conduct activities and provide services necessary to ensure 

successful, timely, and safe completion of the planned construction activities. 

 
CLAIMS MANAGEMENT 

Our approach to claims management is to have a clear understanding of the requirements of the contract 

construction documents so we can anticipate potential claims before they occur. If there is a situation when a 

potential claim might be submitted by the contractor, we clearly document all work associated with that claim. 

Once a claim letter has been submitted by the contractor, we quickly respond to the contractor in writing on 

the validity of their claim. 

 
 

 
 

 

33



PROJECT BUDGET ESTIMATE
TASK RATE 240 220 188 174 154 138 106

# TASKS DESCRIPTION
Principal 

Engineer I
Construction 

Manager
Resident 
Engineer

Sr. Public 
Works 

Inspector

Public Works 
Inspector 

PW Inspector 
Apprentice

Constr. Admin Hours/Task Direct Cost Total Cost

A Pre-construction Phase

1.01 Preconstruction Meeting 4 4 4 2 14 $2,748.00
1.02 Construction Submittal Review and Coordination 2 8 24 4 38 $7,176.00
1.03 Preconstruction Site Documentation (Photos and/or Videos) 4 6 2 12 $2,136.00
1.04 Respond to Contractor RFIs 2 12 4 18 $3,544.00
1.05 Coordinate Encroachment Permit Traffic Control with Marin County and San Rafael 2 4 12 4 2 24 $4,524.00
1.06 Coordinate Lower Lateral Replacement 2 4 14 2 22 $4,008.00
1.07 Miscellaneous Expenses (Mileage, Prints, Postage, etc.) $500 $500.00

Subtotal Preconstruction Phase 12 36 36 28 0 0 16 128 $500 $24,636.00

B Construction Phase (Assumes a Construction Work Time of 180 Calendar Days (Assume 128 Working Days) )

2.01 Public Notification Coordination 2 4 12 2 20 $3,660.00
2.02 Weekly Site Construction Meetings & Project Coordination  2 8 12 20 4 46 $8,400.00
2.03 Construction Support (Weekly Report, RFI, CO, Partial & Final Pay Verification) 40 8 16 12 76 $14,360.00
2.04 Construction Inspection (Assumes Full Time Inspection for 180 Calendar Days)* 4 48 36 800 20 908 $159,608.00
2.05 Miscellaneous Expenses (Mileage, Prints, Postage, etc.) $1,000 $1,000.00

Subtotal Construction Phase 8 100 56 848 0 0 38 1050 $1,000 $187,028.00

C Quality Assurance

3.01 Project Administration and Documentation 2 8 12 8 30 $5,344.00
3.02 Material Testing / Quality Assurance Coordination and Results Review 2 6 8 2 18 $3,516.00
3.03 Labor Compliance Coordination 2 12 14 $1,752.00
3.04 Miscellaneous Expenses (Mileage, Prints, Postage, etc.) $250 $250.00

Subtotal Contract Management Requirements 6 14 20 0 0 0 22 62 $250 $10,862.00

D Post-Construction Phase

4.01 Post Construction Site Inspection, Sewer Video Review and Punch List Preparation 2 8 16 2 28 $5,460.00
4.02 Project Close-out Documentation 2 6 12 8 28 $4,904.00
4.03 Oversite of Record Drawing Preparation 2 4 4 4 2 16 $3,020.00
4.04 Final Reports and Transmittal of all Project  Files and Record Drawings 2 4 8 14 $2,208.00
4.05 Miscellaneous Expenses (Mileage, Prints, Postage, etc.) $500 $500.00

Subtotal Post-Construction Phase 8 22 32 4 0 0 20 86 $500 $16,092.00 

Construction Management Total 34 172 144 880 0 0 96 1,326 $2,250 $238,618.00 

Notes:
1 Breakdown of hours shown on this spreadsheet are for estimating purposes only. Distribution of hours will vary when invoiced.
2 If available, as required by the California Labor Code Prevailing Wage Determination, we will have an apprentice inspector on site (this estimate does not include hours for an apprentice inspector ($138/hr) if required by the DIR).
3 This proposal assumes 128 working days and does not include construction surveying.

Sewer Main Rehabilitation 2024 –Job Nos. 24460-06 & 24460-07
Inspection & Construction Management Services

BUDGET/COST PROPOSAL       
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

34



Page 1 of 3 

  Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: October 3, 2024 
Re: Award of Contract for Construction Management and Inspection Services to 

Alpha CM for the Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements & Pump Station 
Lighting Improvements 

Item Type:  Consent     X  Action   Information Other             . 
Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No (See attached) Not Applicable        . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the award of a contract for combined Construction Management and Inspection 
Services to Alpha CM for both the Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements & Pump Station 
Lighting Improvements projects in the amount of $298,532. 

BACKGROUND 
On September 18, 2024, District staff received a revised proposal from Alpha CM in response to 
the Request for Proposals (RFP) for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the 
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements & Pump Station Lighting Improvements. Alpha CM is 
the only proposer to the RFP issued on August 8, 2024. 

District staff evaluated Alpha CM’s proposal and deemed that the fee estimate in the amount of 
$298,532 is reasonable. This is lower than the $480,248 initially submitted prior to staff 
negotiating the scope of work and pricing. The construction of both the Smith Ranch Pump 
Station Improvements and Pump Station Lighting Improvements projects for a combined amount 
of $1,355,030 have been awarded to Mike Brown Electric with contract durations of approximately 
300 and 150 calendar days, respectively. Alpha CM’s fee proposal is approximately 22% of the 
project cost, which staff feels is reasonable because of multiple project locations and different 
contract durations. The project team shown in the proposal appear qualified to satisfy the project 
requirements outlined in the RFP. Also, Alpha CM’s overall project manager Brian Danley has 
been a construction manager for several District projects in the past.  

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Not to exceed $298,532. The combined projects have a total budget shortfall of $251,685 for FY 
2024-2025, which will be supplemented from the remaining budgets for center pivots #3 and #4 

Item Number_______3E_________ 
GM Review   ______CP__________ 

35

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 
 

 Page 2 of 3 

($125,000), Annual Site Improvement - Paving, Fencing, Lighting ($60,000), and Automatic 
Transfer Switches for Pump Stations ($6,685). 
 

 
Figure 1. Location Map for Smith Ranch Pump Station 

  

36



 
 

 Page 3 of 3 

 

 
Figure 2. Location Map for Pump Station Lighting Improvements Project (11 sites) 

 

37



September 16, 2024

Proposal For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements
& Pump Station Lighting Improvements

Job Nos.  20300-09 & 21300-04

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitation District 

38



September 16, 2024

Michael Cortez, PE
District Engineer
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
101 Lucas Valley Road,  Suite 300
San Rafael, CA 94903

RE:  Proposal for Construction Management and Inspection Services
       Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements & Pump Station Lighting Improvements 

Dear Michael:

The District’s improvements to the aging pump station generator and lighting infrastructure is crucial in maintaining reliable service 
for years to come. 

Alpha CM has the expertise, resources and desire to assist the District on this project. Formed in 2021, we serve solely the needs 
of cities, counties, and special Northern California districts on public infrastructure projects. We specialize in water and wastewater 
projects including supply, storage, treatment, pumping, and collection/distribution. Recent and current projects include the $2M 
Hidden Valley Backup Power project the $40 million Rubber Dam No. 1 and Fishway for the Alameda County Water District, the $6 
million City of San Rafael Stormwater Pump Station, and the $2M San Leandro power backup project. 

Our team has managed projects with standby/emergency generator projects for the San Francisco PUC, Central Marin Sanitation 
Agency, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, the of South San Francisco and the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. We have 
managed projects with FEMA, State Revolving Fund, and other funding agencies. We know what it takes to successfully manage 
publicly funded projects. 

Our construction manager, Dave Latona, brings more than 25 years of pertinent experience on water and public infrastructure 
projects. He’s currently completing his assignment for the previously mentioned Hidden Valley backup power project, and previously 
completed the San Leandro power backup project and the Alameda County Water District Rubber Dam No. 1 and Fishway. Dave also 
has experience with major projects such as the San Francisco PUC’s Sunol Valley Water Treatment Plant rehabilitation which included 
construction of new standby generator facilities. 

Our inspector will be Ben De Bruyn who brings 30 years of experience as a millwright, electrician, and civil inspector. Ben’s 
experience includes municipal and commercial equipment installations and commissioning.

I, Brian Danley, PE, QSD/P, will provide contract management and project oversight services. I bring more than 40 years of construction 
management design and experience with water, wastewater, and public infrastructure projects. Please contact me at (925) 407-5188 or 
bdanley@alphacminc.com if you have any questions regarding this proposal.

We look forward to discussing our qualifications with you and how we may be of service to Las Gallinas Valley Sanitation District.

Regards,

Alpha CM, Inc.

Brian A. Danley, PE, QSD/P, Project Principal
Vice President

2580 Greenwood Ct.
Napa, CA 94558

707.819.9335
www.alphacminc.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

1

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

39



GENERAL FIRM INFORMATION

FIRM PROFILE
Alpha CM was established in 2021, provides construction management (CM) 
and inspection services exclusively to Northern California cities, counties, and 
special districts. Our outstanding staff understands the procedures, intricacies, and 
protocols of public infrastructure construction. Alpha CM is eager, ready, and able 

to assist public agencies from project inception through completion.

Our mission is the successful delivery of community and environmental enhancement projects while providing a rewarding and 
satisfying workplace for our staff. We understand that in order to be the best provider of CM and inspection services it is paramount 
to attract and retain the highest caliber talent. We aim to be the company that attracts the best and the brightest which translates to 
excellent service for your projects.

Alpha CM provides services solely on public infrastructure projects for cities, counties, special districts, state, and federal agencies. 
Current and recently completed projects include:

 ⬗ City of Rohnert Park - A & B Sections Neighborhood Utilities Projects
 ⬗ East Bay Regional Park District - McKay Avenue Utilities, Crown Beach Trail Rehabilitation, and Restroom Facilities 
 ⬗ Hidden Valley Lakes Community Services District - Emergency Generators Installation 
 ⬗ City of Napa - Laurel Street 36-inch Water Main Replacement
 ⬗ Napa Pipe Development - Underground Utilities and Surface Improvements Inspection
 ⬗ City of San Rafael - San Quentin Stormwater Pump Station Replacement
 ⬗ Oro Loma Sanitary District - 40-Mile Sewer Mainline Rehabilitation Program
 ⬗ City of San Leandro - Wastewater Treatment Plant Energy Efficiency and Resiliency Project
 ⬗ Delta Diablo - Manhole, Gravity Interceptor, and Easement Road Improvements
 ⬗ Alameda County Water District - Rubber Dam No.1 and Fishway

Services offered include:
l Bidding Assistance   l Inspection/Quality Assurance   l Cost Estimating
l Project Closeout  l Biddability/Constructability Reviews  l Claims Mitigation & Support 
l Resident Engineering   l Scheduling

RELEVANT PROJECTS AND REFERENCES
Project Experience Relevant to RFP

Ge
ne

ra
to

rs

Li
gh

tin
g

By
pa

ss

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

ns

Co
nt

ro
ls

 (P
LC

/M
CC

)

St
ar

tu
p 

& 
Te

st
in

g 
/ C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g

Backup Power Reliability Project - Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District l l l l

Rubber Dam No. 1/Drop Structure Fishway -  Alameda County Water District l l l l l

San Quentin Pump Replacement Project - City of San Rafael l l l l

Manhole, Gravity Interceptor and Easement Road Improvements - Delta Diablo Sanitary District l

A & B Sections Neighborhood Utilities Projects- City of Rohnert Park l

Climatec Energy Efficiency and Resiliency Project - City of San Leandro l l l l l l

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

2

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

40



Backup Power Reliability Project - Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District
Agency: Hidden Valley Lake Community Services District, 19400 Hartmann Road, Hidden Valley Lake, CA 95467 
Contact: Alyssa Gordon Project Manager    Phone: 707.533.9073 Construction Cost: $2M

                                                         Alpha CM is providing construction management and inspection services. The project 
involves the installation of pre-purchased fixed generators at the Water Treatment Plant 
(WTP), and the Greenridge Booster Station (GBS).This project is part of the District’s ongoing 
effort to harden critical infrastructure against potential future hazards and is funded in part by 
the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP).                          . 

Rubber Dam No. 1/Drop Structure Fishway -  Alameda County Water District
Agency: : Alameda County Water District, 43885 S. Grimmer Blvd., Fremont, CA 94538 
Contact: Shane O’Nesky, PE, Project Manager   Phone: 510.668.4489 Construction Cost: $41M

                                                         The $41 million project consisted of three projects combined into one.

Rubber Dam No. 1 Bladder Dam/Drop Structure Fishway consisted of the removal, storage, 
modification, and re-installation of the ~80,000lbs, ~380 LF dam’s bladder; the placement 
of new bladder dam rubber underlayment/abrasion sheeting; repairs, modifications and 
expansion to the dam’s foundation including underdrains. The new ~625 LF concrete 
Fishway structure included a complex system to assist with upwardly migrating fish, auxiliary 
piping, and utility relocation.

The Shinn Pond Fish Screens consisted of construction of a new Outlet/Inlet structure with 
a new two-story metering vault and six fish screens. This included new 60-, 48-, 36- and 24-inch epoxy coated steel conveyance 
piping, and new instrumentation and controls.

Rubber Dam No. 1 Control Building Modifications consisted of complete removal and upgrade replacement of fill and drain piping, 
and all new controls (MCC, PLC, Switchgear) and electrification, and a new pressure relief structure.  

San Quentin Pump Replacement Project - City of San Rafael
Agency: City of San Rafael, 111 Morphew Street, San Rafael, CA 94901 
Contact: Theo Sanchez, PE, Associate Civil Engineer   Phone: 415.725.1003 Construction Cost: $6M

                                                         Providing construction management and inspection services for the $6M San Quentin 
Stormwater Pump Station Replacement Project. The new station must be fully operational 
prior to demolition of the existing aging facility. Construction requires a cofferdam and 
dewatering as the intake facilities are in a tidal wetland. Three new 100 cfs submersible 
pumps will be installed at full build-out. The project also includes new screenings facilities, 
SCADA, motor control center, portable generator connector, and extensive coordination with 
PG&E for new electrical transformer and facilities. The work is in the vicinity of the salt marsh 
harvest mouse habitat and full-time biological monitoring is required. The city estimated the 

project at $3.3 million dollars, but the contractor’s low bid was $6.6 million. Alpha CM worked with the City and the contractor to 
develop value engineering proposals that resulted in savings of over $500,000.                

Manhole, Gravity Interceptor, and Easement Road Improvements - Delta Diablo Sanitary District
Agency: Delta Diablo, 2500 Pittsburg-Antioch Hwy, Antioch, CA 94509
Contact: Thanh Vo, Senior Engineer     Phone: 925.756.1949 Construction Cost: $3M

                                                       This $3M Project consists of repairing and rehabilitating critical sewer system manholes and 
gravity sewer mains. This includes rehabilitating 30 manholes by way of new structural concrete 
polymer and composite liners, Full sewer manhole replacements with Polymer Concrete 
manholes and Structural Concrete mortar Spray/Grout and epoxy lining with composite frames 
and covers. Also consisted of removing and replacing 30-inch VCP and RCP; CIPP line over 
~1000LF of 30-inch sewer line in UPRR rail right of way and 20-inch sewer line along Caltrans 
right of way. Open cut trenching, Waste water bypassing, AC paving. In addition to working 
within UPRR and Caltrans right of way, much of the work is  within sensitive wetland areas and 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

3

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

41



tidal influenced areas requiring detailed preplanning and coordination to meet project sensitive milestones. Project required 
coordination with CDFW, RWQCB, Delta conservancy, UPRR, City of Pittsburg. Alpha CM initially provided biddability/constructability 
review on a very short timetable in order for Delta Diablo to advertise the project on time.

A&B Sections Neighborhood Utility Improvement Project - City of Rohnert Park
Agency: City of Rohnert Park Public Works, 600 Enterprise Drive Rohnert Park, CA 94928 
Contact: Julian De Anda, PE, Senior Engineer    Phone: 707.257.9460 Construction Cost: $6M

                                                         The City’s A&B Sections Neighborhood Utility Improvement Project generally consists of the 
replacement and repairs of portions of watermain and several sewer mains, replacement of 
sewer manhole covers, installation of new sewer manholes, Asphalt Concrete (AC) trench 
paving, AC paving, traffic striping and pavement markings, concrete gutter repairs, and 
retrofits of existing pedestrian sidewalk access ramps in the “A” & “B” neighborhood section 
of the City. The sewer work includes the repair of sewer main pipes and lower sewer service 
lateral repairs via “Cured In Place Pipe” (CIPP) technique as well as “Open Trench” technique. 
The water work includes replacement of a portion of water main via “Open Trench” and will 
include new water services, water valves and fire hydrants.

Climatec Energy Efficiency and Resiliency Project - City of San Leandro
Agency: City of San Leandro Public Works, 3000 Davis Street, San Leandro, CA 94577 
Contact: Hayes Morehouse , Water Pollution Control Manager  Phone: 510.577.3437 Construction Cost: $8M

                                                         The project consists of plant energy efficient upgrades in conformance with the plants 
long-term program.  This Includes a new 500kW/1.1MWh battery system for plant peak 
demand shaving, energy arbitrage and serve as the primary backup power (up to the BESS 
rated capacity) during public safety power shutoff (PSPS) and other power grid interruptions; 
new High Strength Waste (HSW) Receiving Facility for food processing waste reception; new 
Biogas system to produce RNG (Renewable Natural Gas); new Digester Mixer Replacement 
with high efficiency propeller Mixers; blower replacement to a new high efficiency turbo 
blower; and new shelter structure with pad. Replace existing 5 HP Heat Loop pumps with 
new high efficiency pumps. Project requires coordination with PG&E, Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District, plant operations management, and San Leandro.     

PERSONNEL
In developing our team, we considered construction management 
and inspection expertise and experience with wastewater 
pipelines. The proposed team, as depicted graphically in the 
accompanying organization chart, brings these qualifications. 
During the construction phase, we anticipate the need for 1/2 
time construction manager (with the ability to increase to full-time 
if needed), one full-time inspector, and as-needed scheduler and 
construction administration.

See full resumes on page 8.

Michael Cortez, PE
District Engineer

Construction Manager

Dave Latona, ENV SP, AED, QSD

Project Principal

Brian Danley, PE, QSD/P

Construction Admin

As-Needed

Inspector

Ben De Bruyn

Scheduling

As-Needed

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

4

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

42



PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH

Understanding
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District plans to begin construction of the “Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements” (project #1) and 
“Pump Station Lighting Improvements” (project #2) in September of 2024. The combined engineer estimated $1.5 million project 
received the lowest bid of $1.35 million by Mike Brown Electric Co.

Project #1 has as a specified duration of 300 calendar days. Project #2 has a specified duration of 150 calendar days. 

The work for project #1 mainly consists of replacement of natural gas generator with a 80kW diesel generator, includes 
replacement of fuel tank, generator pad, load bank, PLC, MCC, transmitters, raceways/conduits and wiring, SCADA, start 
up and testing.  

The work of project #2 mainly consists of upgrade to lighting at 11 pump stations. Includes replacement of light fixtures, pull boxes, 
control panels, conduit and wiring, core boring. 

The pump stations will be active during the modifications and will require working within limited space and providing access and 
ability for the District to continue operations. 

Potential Challenges

Long Lead Items: Given the current industry status and having recently worked on similar projects with items such as the 
generator, load bank, PLC, transfer switches, control panels and lighting poles have seen long lead times by manufactures from 4 
months to 1 year. 

Solution: Our team is experienced with owner-furnished materials and equipment projects. We will be closely watching for 
coordination detail problems and will work to resolve them expeditiously.

Commissioning: The generators must be 100 percent reliable and prudently commissioning will ensure this is the case.

Solution: Our experienced team will ensure a sound commissioning plan is in place. All testing and phasing of commissioning will 
be adhered to rigorously and coordinated meetings will be held regularly to ensure a smooth commissioning process. 

Ge
ne

ra
to

rs

Li
gh

tin
g

By
pa

ss

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

ns

Co
nt

ro
ls

 (P
LC

/M
CC

)

St
ar

tu
p 

& 
Te

st
in

g 
/ C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g

Brian Danley, PE, QSD/P a a a a a a

Dave Latona, ENV SP, AED, QSD a a a a a a

Ben De Bruyn a a a a a a

Staff Experience Relevant to RFP

Scope of Services:

Alpha CM provides a complete set of services that span preconstruction, to construction to commissioning and closeout. Our 
services are geared to delivering quality, cost-effective and timely delivered projects. 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE ACTIVITIES
Service Function Deliverables
Preconstruction Familiarity 
and Conference

Outline project specifics. Inform contractor of project 
administration procedures. Team to visit and acquire familiarity 
with project site and construction area. Review project document 
and submittals prior to start.

- Agenda
- Meeting minutes

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

5

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

43



Document Control System   Utilize                           cloud-based document management 
software for organizing, tracking, filing, and managing paper and 
electronic correspondence, including letters, RFI, submittals, 
contracts, reports, O&M manuals, progress payments, change 
orders, etc.

- Electronic files
- Correspondence logs
- Suspense lists

Communications Foster improved project team communications through written, 
verbal, and electronic communication. Keep project team well 
informed.

- Conversations, meetings, 
correspondence, memos, e-mail

Schedule Management Monitor contractor’s baseline, monthly CPM schedules, updates, 
and 3-week look-ahead schedules. Notify parties of actual or 
potential deviation from schedule. Work with project team to 
correct non-compliance with schedule.

- Schedule reports
- Notifications of schedule status

Weekly Meetings Conduct weekly meetings to discuss schedule, progress, current 
and past issues.

- Agenda meeting minutes
- Schedule suspense logs

Weekly Status Reports Prepare weekly reports highlighting project progress, change 
orders, and cost issues.

- Weekly report

Issues Management Analyze issues, seek appropriate advice, and recommend 
redesign parameters.

- Design clarifications
- Contract change orders

Dispute Resolution Make recommendations and implement procedures for reducing 
the likelihood of disputes and claims.

- Dispute avoidance procedures 
and recommendations

Quality Control / Inspection Observe and monitor all aspects of project for compliance 
with contract documents. Notify contractor when work is not in 
compliance. Prepare daily inspection reports. Provide photographic 
and video documentation. Provide public relations by responding to 
all citizen concerns and complaints that arise. Review, monitor, and 
ensure the contractor’s environmental compliance.

- Daily inspection reports
- Photos and videos
- Public Relations log
- SWPPP report

Progress Payments Review contractor’s payment requests. Verify contractor pay 
items. Prepare payment documentation for execution by District.

- Progress payment request 
documents suitable for execution 
by District

Change Orders Review potential change orders for contractual and technical 
merit. Negotiate and prepare change orders for execution by 
District. Keep District apprised of the impact of cumulative 
change orders. Provide field orders.

- Independent cost estimates
- Change orders ready for 
execution
- Change order/field order log

Site Safety / Public Safety 
/ Traffic and Pedestrian 
Control

Review and monitor contractor’s safety program for compliance 
with Cal/OSHA. Notify contractor if unsafe condition is observed. 
Notify District if contractor refuses to rectify unsafe condition. 
Investigate accidents. Monitor and enforce all traffic control and 
public safety plans for compliance.

- Accident reports

Geotech / Materials 
Testing / Special Inspection 
Coordination

Manage laboratory, job site and off site testing of construction 
materials and special inspection.

- Geotech/Materials/Special 
Inspection Reports

Labor Compliance Monitor contractor’s labor compliance - Coordinate with District’s Labor 
Compliance Consultant (CCMI)

Public Outreach Coordinate projects construction activities with neighbors. 
Maintaining good, working relationships with the public and 
neighboring properties. CM will immediately report to the City 
any inconvenience to the public and will try to remedy arising 
problems as soon as possible, subsequent to CM’s discussion 
with the City. 

- Outreach log
- Daily report
- Meeting minutes
- Circulate fliers, notifications, 
door hangers to provide 
information

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

6

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

44



CLOSEOUT PHASE ACTIVITIES
Service Function Deliverables
“As-Built” Drawings Collate, review, and transmit contractor’s data. - Data for record drawings

Final Walkthrough Make final inspections. Prepare a punch list. Verify that 
certificates of compliance and as-built drawings have been 
delivered.

- Punch list

Final Payment Process final progress payment to the contractor. - Final progress payment

Claims Resolution Resolve remaining claims or disputes. Support claims 
negotiation and provide litigation support.

- Negotiation and litigation 
support

Project Completion Report 
and Project Closeout

Prepare final report. Deliver project records to District. - Final report
- Complete project records

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

7

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

45



Years of Experience

45

Education

 § MBA, Business 
Administration 

 § BS, Civil Engineering

Registrations

 § Professional Civil 
Engineer:  California, 
License No. C30347

Certifications 

 § Qualified SWPPP 
Developer/ Practitioner

 § LEED 
Accredited Professional

Brian Danley has more than 45 years of diverse construction management, program management 
and design experience on wastewater and public infrastructure projects. He is an expert in project 
development and delivery on a broad array of public agency projects. Brian brings a perspective that 
emphasizes collaboration, and that collaboration has resulted in numerous successful projects and 
satisfied clients.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
 n South San Francisco/ San Bruno Water Quality Control Plant, Standby Generator and 
Elevated Bus Duct: $4.5M. Construction Manager. Oversaw staff of four and two subconsultants. 
Project included demolition of existing standby generator and building and replacement with 
new caterpillar generator and block building. Existing bus duct bridge supports were removed, 
re-coated offsite and reinstalled.

 n Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Descanso Pump Station Modifications: $362,000.  Construction Manager. 
Project included the installation of an owner furnished standby generator, new fuel tank and equipment pad, wetwell piping 
modifications, electrical upgrades and safety improvements. Bypass pumping was rewired during system outages.

 n City of San Rafael, San Quentin Stormwater Station Pump Replacement Project: $6M. Project Principal.  Providing 
construction management and inspection services for the $6 million San Quentin stormwater pump station replacement project. 
The new station must be fully operational prior to demolition of the existing aging facility. Construction requires a cofferdam and 
dewatering as the intake facilities are in a tidal wetland. Three new 100 cfs submersible will be installed at full build-out. The 
project also includes new screenings facilities, SCADA, motor control center, portable generator connector, and extensive with 
PG&E for new electrical transformer and facilities. The work is in the vicinity of salt marsh harvest mouse habitat and full-time 
biological monitoring is required.

 n Central Marin Sanitation Agency (CMSA), Wastewater Treatment and Conveyance Program, San Rafael, CA: $84M. 
Assistant Construction Manager. This program consisted of 12 separate projects, eight of which ran concurrently, and built over 
a three-year period. In addition to the 125 MGD wastewater treatment plant and two-mile-long marine outfall, there were three 
pump stations and six pipeline projects within sensitive residential and commercial neighborhoods. Project included emergency 
generators and digester gas engine generator. The plant was built on bay mud and required an extensive pile driving system.  
Responsible for all administrative functions for the 12 projects. Tasks included change order preparation, cost estimating, 
scheduling, progress payments, and office administration. Performed inspection services for the various contracts. Prepared all 
change order justifications required by the Construction Grants Program, resulting in a very low percentage of disallowed costs.

 n City of Vacaville, Easterly Wastewater Treatment Plant – Filtration and Denitrification Phases: $100M. Technical 
Assistance/Back-up Construction Manager. This four-phase program upgraded the plant to full tertiary treatment. Project 
components included aeration basin structures, blower electrical building and load centers, washer/compactors, sludge grinders 
and pumps, water booster pump, flow equalization basin, modified biosolids storage lagoon, standby electrical generator, 
transformer system, piping systems, and modifications to four aeration basins.  Participated in the biddability/constructability 
review and provided backup construction management services when the construction manager was on vacation. Review of 
front-end specifications eliminated many ambiguities regarding the contractor’s oversight and administration of the job. This is 
reflected in the project’s change order rate of less than 1% for errors and omissions in the contract documents. 

 n City of Tracy, Water Treatment Plant Additions and Distribution System: $14M. Construction Manager. Project included 20 
miles of water pipeline, three wells, and new treatment units. Responsibilities included scheduling, change order negotiation, progress 
payment preparation, and submittals. He also completed a biddability/ constructability review. Worked with two different contractors 
on-site. Through his keen understanding of each of their interests and creative negotiation skills, all projects were completed with no 
outstanding contractor claims. During water main construction, hazardous materials were encountered while excavating crossings of 
the Southern Pacific Railroad right-of-way. Work was immediately stopped, and the hazmat consultant was brought in to assess the 
situation. A bunker fuel pipeline along the alignment had been previously dug up and abandoned and residue in the pipe was thrown 
back in the trench. Worked with the hazmat consultant on a mitigation plan and work resumed. Successfully negotiated a major delay 
dispute between the general contractor and the City. Contractor was granted more time but no compensation for finishing late.  

Brian Danley
P.E., LEED AP, QSD/P
Project Principal

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

8

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

46



Years of Experience

25

Education

 § Undergraduate Studies, 
Civil Engineering 

 § Undergraduate 
Studies, Geomorphic & 
Ecological Fundamentals

Certifications 

 § California 
Stormwater Quality 
Association (CASQA) 

 § Qualified SWPPP 
Developer (QSD) 

 § Certified Professional in 
Erosion and Sediment 
Control (CPESC) 

 § American Ecological 
Engineering Society 
(AEES)- Ecological 
designer (AED) 

 § Institute for Sustainable 
Infrastructure (ENV SP) 

Dave has over 25 years of experience in providing project and program management on water 
resources and capital improvement projects throughout the San Francisco Bay Area. Dave has 
developed close, personal working relationships with several public agencies and has provided 
leadership to over $500 million in water projects. 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
 n Hidden Valley Lakes Community Services District, Two New Emergency Generators: $2M. 
Construction Manager. Alpha CM is providing construction management and inspection services. 
The project involves the installation of pre-purchased fixed generators at the Water Treatment 
Plant (WTP), and the Greenridge Booster Station (GBS).This project is part of the District’s ongoing 
effort to harden critical infrastructure against potential future hazards and is funded in part by the 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP).

 n City of San Leandro, Climatec Energy Efficiency and Resiliency Project: $8M. Construction 
Manager. The project consists of plant energy efficient upgrades in conformance with the plants 
long-term program.  This includes a new 500kW/1.1MWh battery system for plant peak demand 
shaving, energy arbitrage and serve as the primary backup power (up to the BESS rated capacity) 
during public safety power shutoff (PSPS) and other power grid interruptions; new High Strength 
Waste (HSW) Receiving Facility for food processing waste reception; new Biogas system to 
produce RNG (Renewable Natural Gas); new Digester Mixer Replacement with high efficiency 
propeller Mixers; blower replacement to a new high efficiency turbo blower; and new shelter structure with pad. Replace 
existing 5 HP Heat Loop pumps with new high efficiency pumps. Project requires coordination with PG&E, Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District, plant operations management, and San Leandro.

 n San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), Sunol Valley Water Treatment Plant Rehabilitation, Emergency 
Water Storage and Supply (phase): $19M. Resident Engineer/Inspector. The project consisted of the creation of a new 
17.5MG DYK storage tank and emergency generation upgrade, demo and hazardous material removal, mass grading of hillside, 
soil nail and shotcreted embankment wall, slope drainage, Subex and engineered backfill of tank pad, CIDH footings (36” dia 
x ~40ft length, spaced 12ft o.c.) Piping consisted from 60” steel supply to 12” PVC. Project also consisted of extensive tank 
underdrainage system as well as drainage of shotcrete embankment wall and of slope, joint trenching and install of new auxiliary 
backup generators and facility upgrades, system communications upgrade (SCADA) and performed commissioning of system.

 n Alameda County Water District, Dam No. 1 Rubber Dam Modifications, Shinn Outfall/Inlet Construction, Fish Screens 
and Control Building Modifications: $40M. Project Manager. Project consisted of the removal, storage, modification, and 
reinstallation of the ~80,000lbs, ~380LF dam’s bladder, placement of new bladder dam rubber underlayment/abrasion sheeting, 
repairs, modifications, and expansion to the dam’s foundation including underdrains, new 625LF fishway structure, auxiliary 
piping, and utility relocation. Shinn Pond fish screens consisted of construction of a new outlet/inlet structure with a new two-
story metering vault and six fish screens, this included new 60-, 48-, 36- and 24-inch epoxy coated steel conveyance piping, 
demo of undersized outlet/inlet structures and new instrumentation and controls. Rubber Dam 1 control building modifications 
consisted of complete removal and upgrade replacement of fill and drain piping, and all new controls and electrification, and new 
pressure relief structure. The multi-discipline project consisted of geotechnical, vertical construction, deep foundation, hydrology, 
geomorphology, ecology in addition to mechanics, electrical and communications system (SCADA) knowledge. The project 
was on a stringent timeline requiring coordination with multi-agencies such as DSOD, Army Corps, ACFCD, CCFW, Coastal 
Conservancy, NOAA fisheries, UPRR and BART, in addition to upstream stakeholders such as the SFPUC. Dave’s experience and 
past working relationships served to support the client in the successful completion.

 n Alameda County Water District, Dam No. 3 Replacement and Fishway Construction: $7.8M. Project Manager. The project 
consisted of removal and replacement of the dam, pump station, and support facilities in addition to the creation of a new fish 
passage. The project was a multi-discipline project consisting of geotechnical, vertical construction, deep foundation, hydrology, 
geomorphology, ecology in addition to mechanics, electrical and communications system (SCADA). The project was on a 
stringent timeline requiring coordination with multi-agencies such as DSOD, Army Corps, ACFCD, CCFW, Coastal Conservancy, in 
addition to upstream stakeholders such as the SFPUC. Dave’s experience and past working relationships served to support the 
client and field staff.

Dave Latona
ENV SP, AED, QSD
Construction Manager

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

9

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

47



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

10

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

Ben De Bruyn has 32 years of experience in the construction industry providing inspection services 
and serving as a foreman on public works improvements. He specializes in electrical inspection. 
Portfolio includes a wide range of projects, including layout of electrical panels; and installation of 
wiring for residential, commercial, and industrial developments. 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
 n City of Modesto, Highway Village Strengthen and Main replacement Project:  Inspector 
Project consisted of installation of a new main and services to 325 single-family residential 
homes, 2 apartment complexes, and 3 assisted living complexes. Construction included the 
installation of 9,711 LF of 8” C900, 2,236 LF of 12” C900, 17,920 LF of hydraulic boring, and 
33 fire hydrants.

 n Sacramento County Regional Wastewater – Lift Station Improvements Project: Foreman 
electrician for the construction of six new sewer lift stations throughout Sac regional. Responsible 
for the excavation and installation of new panels, switches, pumps, conduit and start-ups 
following the project specifications and standards.

 n City of Sacramento, Wifi Installation – 5G Small Cell Deployment: Construction Inspector. 
Construction inspector for the installation of wifi throughout the City of Sacramento. Project 
challenges include finding the right lines for boring (boring route) in Downtown Sacramento due 
to numerous fibers; minimizing damage; and making sure the contractors comply with the City’s 
traffic safety measures (contractors are from various states and are unfamiliar with public safety 
laws in California). Responsible for traffic signal and street light inspections; SMUD inspections for 
green tagging electrical services and disconnects through the entire City of Sacramento; training 
the contractors regarding traffic control plans and public safety rules; making sure permits and 
plans are up to date for the electrical portion of the small cell; inspecting construction activities; 
preparing daily reports; monitoring traffic control measures; verifying completion of item work; 
developing pay estimates; and outreach to local residents and businesses.

 n Sacramento County Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant: Electrician. Project consisted of installation of new facility motor 
connections, towers, transformers, power feeders, new transfer switches, conduit placement, termination,  installation of new 
submersible pumps, power hookups. Project required extensive shutdown coordination and startup process / commissioning.

 n City of Auburn, Lift Station Improvements: Electrician. Project consisted of improvements to 12 lift stations, replace pumps 
(vacuum pumps, flight pumps), new conduit runs, termination, installation of new transfer switches. New instrumentation and 
termination and commissioning.  

 n McClellan Air Force Base: Electrician. Construction of eight lift stations, new motor controls, bubbling systems, 
pumps, instrumentation and termination, conduit install, commissioning. Project required security clearance and strict 
schedule restraints. 

 n City of San Francisco Pier: Electrician.  Project consisted of installation of two new engines (250 and 400MW) generators, new 
conduit, wire, instrumentation, transfer switches (MTS/ATS).    

 n Mittal Steel: Senior Millright – Installed and maintained Hot blast furnace gas compressors, blowers and generators. 

 n Various Agencies (Cities of Chico, Elk Grove, Rocklin, Roseville, Modesto, Merced, Sacramento), Multiple Transportation 
Improvements: Foreman Electrician. Served as foreman electrician on multiple transportation infrastructure improvement 
projects. Responsible for installing traffic signals and streetlights according to blueprints; inspecting and repairing traffic signals; 
and coordinating with city and county officials and inspectors to ensure public safety.

Benjamin De Bruyn
Inspector

Years of Experience

32

Education

 § Millwright Diploma, 
South Africa, 1992

 § Journey Electrician N4 
Diploma, South Africa

Registrations

 § Electrical State Certification, 
California, 2007- current

Specialized Training 

 § OSHA 10 Safety

 § Solar Photovoltaic

 § Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure Training

 § Concrete Work, 
including Set Forms to 
Correct Percentages 
Pouring and Finish

Areas of Expertise 

 § Construction Management

 § Construction Inspection

 § Electrical 
Construction Inspection

 § Heavy Civil Construction 

 § NPDES Permit Compliance

 § Project Documentation

 § Safety Compliance

48



FEE SCHEDULE

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

11

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

49

pquinn
Text Box
See Revised Fee Schedule dated 9/18/2024.

pquinn
Line



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
9/16/2024

12

Proposals For Construction Management and Inspection Services
Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job No. 20300-09)

& Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job No. 21300-04)

50

pquinn
Text Box
See Revised Fee Schedule dated 9/18/2024.

pquinn
Line



9/18/24

Task 1: Construction Phase  

Project Principal 220$                     4 880$                    

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Inspector 185$                     4 740$                    

Construction Manager 196$                     50 9,800$                 

Construction Manager 196$                     85 16,660$               

Construction Manager 196$                     40 7,840$                 

Contract Admin 100$                     0 -$                     

Construction Manager 196$                     20 3,920$                 

Construction Manager 196$                     10 1,960$                 

Inspector 185$                     1056 195,360$             

Inspector 188$                     20 3,760$                 

Contract Admin 100$                     0 -$                     

Construction Manager 196$                     10 1,960$                 

Scheduler 196$                     60 11,760$               

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Project Principal 220$                     2 440$                    

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Subconsultant (RGH) w/markup 2,000$                 

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Inspector 185$                     8 1,480$                 

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Inspector 185$                     4 740$                    

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Inspector 185$                     8 1,480$                 

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    
Inspector 185$                     4 740$                    

1413 267,008$             

Task 2: Post Construction Services  

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Inspector 185$                     4 740$                    

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Inspector 185$                     4 740$                    

Task 2.1: Final Inspection and Punch List

Task 2.2: Closeout Documents by Contractor

Task 2.3: Project Record Drawings

Task 1.4: Document Management

Task 1.5: Submittal Management and Review

Task 1.6: Request for Information (RFI) Management

Task 1.1: Pre-construction Conference

Billing Rate

Task 1.2: Communication and Correspondence

Task 1.3: Progress/Coordination Meetings

Construction Management and Inspection Services Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements (Job NO. 

20300-09) & Pump Station Lighting Improvements (Job NO. 21300-04) 

Fee Proposal (Revised 9-18-24)

Total PriceTotal Hours Task & Staffing

Subtotal

Task 1.13: Geotechnical Services 

Task 1.9: Payment Recommendations

Task 1.7: Quality Assurance Inspection

Task 1.8: Maintain Photographic and Video Records of Construction Progress

Task 1.12: Claims Review and Analysis

Task 1.14: Safety

Task 1.11: Construction Change Order (CCO) Management

Task 1.15: Permit Compliance Coordination

Task 1.16: Review and Maintain Record Drawings

Task 1.17: Outreach

Task 1.10: Schedule Monitoring

51



Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Project Principal 220$                     2 440$                    

Construction Manager 196$                     4 784$                    

Project Principal 220$                     2 440$                    

Construction Manager 196$                     14 2,744$                 
Contract Admin 100$                     0 -$                     

46 9,024$                 

Vehicle  

1,800$                 8 14,400$               
Construction Manager 1,800$                 3 5,400$                 

Cell/Data/Computer  

150$                     8 1,200$                 
Construction Manager 150$                     10 1,500$                 

22,500$               

276,032$             

22,500$               
298,532$             

10 2,200$                

277 54,292$              

1112 205,720$            

Contract Admin 0 -$                    

Scheduling 60 11,760$              

Grand Total 1399 262,212$            

Subtotal

Task 2.5: Final Project Report

Task & Staffing Total

Task 2.4: Final Payment

Task 2.6: Contract Close-out

Inspector

Hours & Cost Breakdown by Staff Total Hours Total Price

Project Principal

Construction Manager

                  Inspector   

Total Months Total PriceBilling RateOther Direct Costs (ODCs)

Other Direct Costs (ODCs) Total
Grand Total

Subtotal

                  Inspector   

Assumptions
1. Construction duration of 300 calendar days for Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvements. Notice to 

proceed in September 2024.
2. Contruction duration of 150 calendar days for Pump Station Lighting Improvements. Notice to 

proceed in September 2024.
3. Pump Station lighting Improvements project to be performed within the 300 calendar days of 

Smith Ranch Pump Station Improvments project. 
4. First 30 days after NTP, No inspeciton needs.
5. 60 days prior to project completion inspection to be on a part-time basis, 8hrs day. 
6. 30 day temporary shut down upon completion of civil work and prior to installation of long lead 

items such as generators, controls, PLC, MCC.
7. Inspection performed for 139 working days of the 300 calander days. 
8. Work conducted standard work hours M-F, No Overtime, weekends or holiday hours calculated

into level of effort. 
9. Level of effort is an estimate only.
10. Each individual cost item is a guide only; total CM cost shall take precedent.
11. Subconsultant costs are an allowance only. Actual work will be invoiced on time and material basis

as directed by our Construction Manager.
12. Material Testing/ Special Inspections provided by others.
13. With the exception of vehicle/ subsistence/cell/ data/computer, hourly rates include all direct and 

indirect overhead normally associated with this type of work.
14. Level of Effort based on RFP documentation provided by Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District.
15. Prevailing Wage specified is based on current DIR determination. Any future DIR escalation of

prevailing wage rate will be reflected in the loaded rates.
16. Alpha CM reserves the right to move budget between tasks and staff and use of alternate 

inspector.

52



Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: October 3, 2024 
Re: Supplemental Will-Serve Letter for Legacy at Lucas Valley (Talus Reserve) 
Item Type:  Consent     X  Action   Information Other             . 
Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No (See attached) Not Applicable        . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the supplemental Will-Serve Letter for Legacy at Lucas Valley (formerly Talus 
Reserve and later Oakview). 

BACKGROUND 
On October 19, 2023, The County of Marin Community Development Agency Planning Division 
issued a corrected memorandum for Legacy at Lucas Valley for the addition of 22 Accessory 
Dwelling Units (ADUs) to the former Talus Reserve development that the District had issued a 
Will-Serve Letter on June 28, 2022 for 28 single family homes and 5 ADUs. 

District staff reviewed the plans submitted by Haven Development (new developer) indicating 
that the ADUs are consistent with the definition of an ADU outlined in Assembly Bill No. 68 and 
current District ordinance.  

Based on the information provided, 15 of the ADUs are greater than 750 square feet in total 
floor area. Pursuant to Assembly Bill No. 68, SECTION 165852.2.(f)(3)(A), the District could 
collect a “proportionate impact fee” of $36,730.17 per current connection fee rates. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
The District Board approved a Will-Serve Letter to Talus Reserve for 28 single family homes 
and 5 ADUs on June 2, 2022. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Connection fee revenue of $36,730.17. 

Item Number_______3F_________ 
GM Review   _______CP_________ 

53

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 
 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
Figure 1. Location Map 

54



  

1 

101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300  • San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472-1734  •  Fax 415.499-7715  •  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

Date:    October 3, 2024 
 
Property Owner(s):  Lucas Valley – Talus, LLC 
 
Property Owner Address: 2000 Crow Canyon Place, Suite 350 
    San Ramon, CA 94583 
 
Applicant:   Robert Parish 
        
Project Name:   Legacy at Lucas Valley (formerly Talus Reserve and later Oakview) 
   
Project Address:  Erin Drive  
    San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
Project APN:   APN 164-650-03 to 09 
 
Re: Will–Serve Letter 
 
You have requested a supplemental Will–Serve Letter from the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
(“District”) at the October 3, 2024 Board Meeting for 22 ADUs. 
 
Subject to the terms and conditions in this letter, the District will serve the additional 22 Accessory 
Dwelling Units (ADUs). This letter may be used to submit to another local agency to satisfy a condition 
for either tentative subdivision map approval or any other permit approval. 
 
The standard terms and conditions of approval are as follows: 
Initial Item Condition of Approval 
 1 You pay for the facility capacity fee (new connection fee) in accordance with 

LGVSD ordinances and policies.  Please note payment date obligation and amount 
obligation. 

 2 You agree to abide by all conditions of approval of the Board of Directors and 
District staff. 

 3 This Will Serve approval terminates three (3) years from the Board meeting date 
unless all building permits have been issued for the project. 

 4 Field inspection during construction is required for this project. Applicant shall 
accommodate and coordinate with District hired third-party inspector for 
inspections. 

 5 Prior to the connection of any sewer lateral, you must contact the District for the 
appropriate lateral inspection permit. A lateral tie-in inspection is required before 
any lateral can be backfilled. 

 
A complete summary of the project specific conditions of approval is included in the Board Meeting 
minutes. 
 
The Connection Fee approved by the Board is as follows: 

Proportionate Impact Fee per AB 68 for 22 ADUs:     $   36,730.17 
(Charged proportionately in relation to square footage of primary dwelling unit.) 
Total Connection Fee:    $   36,730.17 
Application Fee:    $            0.00 (paid) 
Engineering Review and Inspection Fees:    $            TBD     

55



LGVSD Supplemental Will Serve Letter 10/3/2024 
Legacy at Lucas Valley (Talus Reserve) - Erin Dr 

2 
101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300  • San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472-1734  •  Fax 415.499-7715  •  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

Total Fee:    $   36,730.17 
Outstanding Balance:     $   36,730.17 
 

The proposed ADUs shall be subjected to field verification upon project completion. The connection fee 
may be adjusted for actual number of ADUs. 
 
The District ordinance provides for payment of the Connection Fee over a two-year period according to 
the following: 

1. 10% of the Connection Fee is due within thirty days of Board approval of final plans and 
specifications; 

2. 40% of the Connection Fee is due within one year, October 3, 2025; or upon the date of building 
permit issuance, whichever occurs first; 

3. 50% of the Connection Fee is due within two years, October 3, 2026; or upon the date of building 
permit issuance, whichever occurs first; 

 
Please remit $36,730.17 and make the check payable to Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Please note 
if payment schedule as above is not followed, you risk losing your allocation. 
 
By issuing this supplemental Will-Serve Letter, LGVSD is not incurring any liability of any nature, 
including but not limited to mandate, damages or injunctive relief.  LGVSD is making no representation 
to the applicant nor waiving any rights it has under any applicable State or Federal law.  In the event there 
is any court imposed moratorium on LGVSD, a connection to the District system may not occur.  In the 
event any government agency imposes a moratorium on LGVSD, a connection to the District system may 
not occur.  In the event there is not sufficient capacity, a connection to the District system may not occur. 
 
If connection has not been made within three years, the allocation will be terminated without prejudice.  
Upon request, you will receive a refund of 90% of the above fees and you will be able to re-apply for an 
allocation at the fee rate then prevailing.  Please sign and date the original of this letter and return it to the 
District office within 10 days.  The copy is for your records. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Michael P. Cortez, PE District Engineer 
 
AGREED: 
 
_____________________________________________________ Date:_________________________ 
Project Applicant 
 
Cc: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 

56



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\John Duckett Force Main Access Structures\ASR John Duckett Force Main Access Structures.docx 
Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: October 3, 2024 
Re: Approve Resolution 2024-2340 

Accepting Final Completion of John Duckett Force Main Access Structures 
Item Type:  Consent___X___ Action___ ____ Information_______ Other________  
Standard Contract:    Yes_____   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable___X____ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Resolution 2024-2340 Accepting Final Completion of the John Duckett Force Main 
Access Structures Project. 

BACKGROUND 
Corcus Construction Inc. has submitted a certificate of completion dated September 13, 2024 for the 
John Duckett Force Main Access Structures project. The final cost is $505,178.52, which includes 
$105,445.52 in additive change orders. The project provided for construction of two new manhole 
structures to access the existing force main for inspection and cleaning purposes as required in the 
NPDES Permit, Table 6, Task 2 - Clean and Assess Condition of Collection System.  

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION(S) 
Board approved the Award of Contract for John Duckett Force Main Access Structures to Corcus 
Construction Inc. on October 5, 2023. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
This project was previously approved in the District CIP budget. 

Item Number_______3G_____ 
GM Review   _______CP_______ 

57

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\John Duckett Force Main Access Structures\ASR John Duckett Force Main Access Structures.docx  
Page 2 of 2 

 
Figure 1. Location Map for Access Manhole #1 

 

 
Figure 2. Location Map for Access Manhole #2 

58



Resolution No. 2024-2340   

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2340 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE  
JOHN DUCKETT FORCE MAIN ACCESS STRUCTURES 

FOR 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, Corcus Construction Inc. of San Francisco, California, executed a 
contract on November 2, 2023 in the amount of $399,733 to complete JOHN DUCKETT 
FORCE MAIN ACCESS STRUCTURES project, Job No. 20200-01, scope defined in 
Contract Documents and Specifications dated July 2023, as revised on November 2, 
2023, prepared by District staff and consultants, for District ownership and 
maintenance;  
 

WHEREAS, the District has authorized additive change orders in the total 
amount of $105,445.52, for a total final project cost of $505,178.52; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Michael P. Cortez, District Engineer for the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District by a Notice of Completion dated October 3, 2024, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, has acknowledged that the aforementioned improvements 
have been installed, tested by the District, and found to be acceptable to the District, for 
District ownership and maintenance.    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District herein approves the Notice of Acceptance of Completion for recordation with the 
Marin County Recorder. 
 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 3rd day of October 
2024, by the following vote of the members thereof: 
 
AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 
NOES, Members: 
ABSTAIN, Members: 
ABSENT, Members: 
  

________________________________ 
         Teresa Lerch, District Secretary 
      Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
APPROVED: 
 
           (seal) 
_____________________________________ 
Craig K. Murray, President Board of Directors 

59



Resolution No. 2024-2340   

Exhibit A 
 

Notice of Acceptance of Completion 
JOHN DUCKETT FORCE MAIN ACCESS STRUCTURES 

60



 
X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\John Duckett Force Main Access Structures\2024-2340 Notice of Acceptance of Completion - 
John Duckett Force Main Access Structures.docx 

Recorded at the Request of: 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
When Recorded Mail to: 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  
101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 
San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
  
 Space above this Line for Recorder's Use 
 

NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLETION 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
MARIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
JOHN DUCKETT FORCE MAIN ACCESS STRUCTURES 

  
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, Pursuant to Section 3093 of the Civil Code of the State of California, that  
Michael P. Cortez, District Engineer for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, on 
the 3rd day of October 2024, did file with the Secretary of said District a Statement of Completion of the 
following described work, the JOHN DUCKETT FORCE MAIN ACCESS STRUCTURES project, Job No. 
20200-01, the contract for doing which was awarded to Corcus Construction Inc. of San Francisco, California, 
and entered into on November 2, 2023. A copy of said Statement of Completion is attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference herein as Attachment 1. 
 
That said work and improvements are public improvements owned and held by said District for the benefit of 
the public, and were actually completed on the 13th day of September 2024. Acceptance of completion of said 
work was ordered by the District Board on October 3, 2024. 
 
That said work and improvements consisted of the performing of all work and furnishing of all labor, materials, 
equipment and all utility and transportation services required for the installation of the JOHN DUCKETT 
FORCE MAIN ACCESS STRUCTURES project, all as more particularly described in the plans and 
specifications approved by the said District in July 2023, as revised on November 2, 2023. 
 
The site of the construction and improvements was in San Rafael, CA 94903. 
 
OWNER: Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 
San Rafael, CA 94903 

 
 
VERIFICATION 
 
I, the undersigned, declare that I am the General Manager and duly authorized representative for the Las Gallinas 
Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, and that I have read the foregoing notice, know its contents, and 
that the facts therein stated are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 
 
 
 
 
(CONTINUED NEXT PAGE) 

61



 
X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\John Duckett Force Main Access Structures\2024-2340 Notice of Acceptance of Completion - 
John Duckett Force Main Access Structures.docx 

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury that the forgoing is true and correct. 
 
Executed at San Rafael, California, this __________________________ day of October 2024. 
 
 
      LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
      
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Curtis Paxton, General Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

62



 

 
101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300  • San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472-1734  •  Fax 415.499-7715  •  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

 
ATTACHMENT 1 

 
STATEMENT OF COMPLETION 

 
 

JOHN DUCKETT FORCE MAIN ACCESS STRUCTURES 
(JOB NO. 20200-01) 

 
 

I, Michael P. Cortez, District Engineer, for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin 
County, California, do hereby certify that work and improvements described in the contract, which was 
entered into by and between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and Corcus Construction Inc. of San 
Francisco, California, dated November 2, 2023 was completed to my satisfaction on September 13th, 
2024. 
 

That said work and improvements are more particularly described in the Contract Documents 
dated July 2023, as revised on November 2, 2023, prepared by District staff, and advertised for public 
bidding on July 5, 2023. 
 

I understand that neither the determination of completeness of the work, nor acceptance of the 
work by the District, shall operate to bar claims against the Contractor under the terms of the guarantee 
provisions of the Contract Documents. 
 
Dated: October 3, 2024 
 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
        Michael P. Cortez, PE 
        District Engineer 
 
 
 
 
   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\John Duckett Force Main Access Structures\2024-2340 Statement of Acceptance of 
Completion - John Duckett Force Main Access Structures.docx 

63



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\Standby Generator System Installation\ASR Standby Generator System Installation.docx  Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: October 3, 2024 
Re: Approve Resolution 2024-2341 

Accepting Final Completion of Standby Generator System Installation 
Item Type:  Consent___X___ Action___ ____ Information_______ Other________ 
Standard Contract:    Yes_____   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable___X____ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Resolution 2024-2341 Accepting Final Completion of the Standby Generator System 
Installation Project. 

BACKGROUND 
G.D. Nielson Construction, Inc. has completed start-up and training requirements for the Standby 
Generator System Installation project on August 13, 2024. The final cost is $645,807.37, which includes 
$208,766.37 in additive change orders. The project provided for the installation of standby gensets at the 
Adrian, McPhail, and Northgate Industrial Park pump stations per the design criteria outlined in the 
Request for Proposals prepared by District staff. The Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
(BAAQMD) reviewed the genset specifications and issued the Permit to Construct before installation. 
District staff will obtain permits to operate from BAAQMD after recordation of the Notice of Completion. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION(S) 
Board approved the Award of Contract for Standby Generator System Installation to G.D. Nielson 
Construction, Inc. on August 5, 2021. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
This project was previously approved in the District CIP budget. 

Item Number_____3H_______ 
GM Review   ______CP________ 

64

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\Standby Generator System Installation\ASR Standby Generator System Installation.docx  Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Figure 1. Location Map 

65



Resolution No. 2024-2341   

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2341 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE  
STANDBY GENERATOR SYSTEM INSTALLATION 

FOR 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, G.D. Nielson Construction, Inc. of Napa, California, executed a 
contract on December 16, 2021 in the amount of $437,041 to complete the STANDBY 
GENERATOR SYSTEM INSTALLATION project, Job No. 21300-03, scope defined in 
the design criteria outlined in the Request for Proposals dated May 2021 prepared by 
District staff and consultants, for District ownership and maintenance;  
 

WHEREAS, the District has authorized additive change orders in the total 
amount of $208,766.37, for a total final project cost of $645,807.37; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Michael P. Cortez, District Engineer for the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District by a Notice of Completion dated October 3, 2024, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, has acknowledged that the aforementioned improvements 
have been installed, tested by the District, and found to be acceptable to the District, for 
District ownership and maintenance.    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District herein approves the Notice of Acceptance of Completion for recordation with the 
Marin County Recorder. 
 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 3rd day of October 
2024, by the following vote of the members thereof: 
 
AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 
NOES, Members: 
ABSTAIN, Members: 
ABSENT, Members: 
  

________________________________ 
         Teresa Lerch, District Secretary 
      Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
APPROVED: 
 
           (seal) 
_____________________________________ 
Craig K. Murray, President Board of Directors 

66



Resolution No. 2024-2341   

Exhibit A 
 

Notice of Acceptance of Completion 
STANDBY GENERATOR SYSTEM INSTALLATION 

67



 
X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\Standby Generator System Installation\2024-2341 Notice of Acceptance of Completion - Standby 
Generator System Installation.docx 

Recorded at the Request of: 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
When Recorded Mail to: 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  
101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 
San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
  
 Space above this Line for Recorder's Use 
 

NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLETION 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
MARIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
STANDBY GENERATOR SYSTEM INSTALLATION 

  
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, Pursuant to Section 3093 of the Civil Code of the State of California, that  
Michael P. Cortez, District Engineer for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, on 
the 3rd day of October 2024, did file with the Secretary of said District a Statement of Completion of the 
following described work, the STANDBY GENERATOR SYSTEM INSTALLATION project, Job No. 21300-
03, the contract for doing which was awarded to G.D. Nielson Construction, Inc. of Napa, California, and 
entered into on December 16, 2021. A copy of said Statement of Completion is attached hereto and incorporated 
by reference herein as Attachment 1.  
 
That said work and improvements are public improvements owned and held by said District for the benefit of 
the public, and were actually completed on the 13th day of August 2024. Acceptance of completion of said work 
was ordered by the District Board on October 3, 2024. 
 
That said work and improvements consisted of the performing of all work and furnishing of all labor, materials, 
equipment and all utility and transportation services required for the installation of the STANDBY 
GENERATOR SYSTEM INSTALLATION project, all as more particularly described in the design criteria 
outlined in the Request for Proposals approved by the said District in May 2021. 
 
The site of the construction and improvements was in San Rafael, CA 94903. 
 
OWNER: Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 
San Rafael, CA 94903 

 
 
VERIFICATION 
 
I, the undersigned, declare that I am the General Manager and duly authorized representative for the Las Gallinas 
Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, and that I have read the foregoing notice, know its contents, and 
that the facts therein stated are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 
 
 
 
 
(CONTINUED NEXT PAGE) 

68



 
X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\Standby Generator System Installation\2024-2341 Notice of Acceptance of Completion - Standby 
Generator System Installation.docx 

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury that the forgoing is true and correct. 
 
Executed at San Rafael, California, this __________________________ day of October 2024. 
 
 
      LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
      
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Curtis Paxton, General Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

69



 

 
101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300  • San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472-1734  •  Fax 415.499-7715  •  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

 
ATTACHMENT 1 

 
STATEMENT OF COMPLETION 

 
 

STANDBY GENERATOR SYSTEM INSTALLATION 
(JOB NO. 21300-03) 

 
 

I, Michael P. Cortez, District Engineer, for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin 
County, California, do hereby certify that work and improvements described in the contract, which was 
entered into by and between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and G.D. Nielson Construction, Inc. 
of Napa, California, dated December 16, 2021 was completed to my satisfaction on August 13, 2024. 
 

That said work and improvements are more particularly described in the Request for Proposals 
dated May 2021, prepared by District staff, and advertised for public bidding on May 28, 2021. 
 

I understand that neither the determination of completeness of the work, nor acceptance of the 
work by the District, shall operate to bar claims against the Contractor under the terms of the guarantee 
provisions of the contract with G.D. Nielson Construction, Inc. 
 
Dated: October 3, 2024 
 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
        Michael P. Cortez, PE 
        District Engineer 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\Standby Generator System Installation\2024-2341 Statement of Acceptance of Completion - 
Standby Generator System Installation.docx 

70



 

 
 

 

10/3/2024 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4.1 

71



Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: October 3, 2024 
Re: Approval of Unilateral Contract Change Orders for STPURWE Project 
Item Type:  Consent  Action  X   Information Other             . 
Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No (See attached) Not Applicable        . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the issuance of six (6) unilateral Contract Change Orders (CCOs) with a 
combined amount of $203,700.00 to Myers and Sons Construction, LLC (MSC) for the Secondary 
Treatment Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion (STPURWE) project and authorize transfer 
from Capital Reserves to cover payment of CCOs. 

BACKGROUND 
In July 2023, MSC submitted eighteen (18) Potential Change Orders (PCOs) increasing the total 
amount of unresolved PCOs from $273,711 to $1,905,681, which District staff disputed. After 
several meet-and-confer meetings, in May 2024 the number of unresolved PCOs decreased to six 
with MSC lowering its pricing to $486,000; however, staff rejected as it could only justify 
$203,700.00 based on the backup documentation MSC provided. After conferring with legal 
counsel, and to expeditiously resolve the differences, in June 2024 staff countered with an offer of 
$225,000, which MSC verbally accepted but later rejected in August 2024 unless the District 
releases $1,474,813 remaining in escrow retention within 45 days. Both staff and legal counsel, 
including the Engineering Ad Hoc Committee, rejected MSC’s request. 

On September 5, 2024, the District Board concurred with the staff recommendation to issue 
unilateral change orders for the unresolved PCOs. These unilateral change order directives from 
the District do not require MSC’s consent and signature, and is in response to MSC’s failure to 
submit additional PCO justifications that District staff and its consultants had requested in 
previous meet-and-confer meetings. Upon issuance of the unilateral CCOs, the District intends to 
issue a final progress payment and file a Notice of Completion. Furthermore, the District will 
appropriately address the release of retention after recording the Notice of Completion pending 
verification of Conditional or Unconditional Waiver and Release on Final Payment by MSC 
subcontractors and vendors and resolution of other issues, such as with the Biowheels. 

Summary of unilateral CCOs: 
1. SWPPP for 2022 (PCO 296)   $ 10,000.00 
2. Changes/modifications to AC paving and gravel (PCO 374) $ 80,000.00 
3. Pressure relief valves for 10” potable water line (PCO 389) $ 70,000.00 
4. HDPE material cost escalations (PCO 395) $   7,700.00 
5. Labor escalations (PCO 396) $ 21,000.00 
6. Fencing cost adjustment (PCO397) $ 15,000.00 

Total: $203,700.00 

Item Number_________5_______ 
GM Review   _________CP_______ 

72

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 
 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
See attached memo dated September 25, 2024 for discussion of the amounts for each PCO. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$203,700.00 funding for the CCOs will come from the Capital Reserve Fund upon Board 
authorization. 
 
The Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 Budget allocated up to $500,000 from the Capital Reserve Fund to 
be used for the Corporation Yard Design. It is anticipated that Corporation Yard Design costs in 
FY 2024-25 will be less than $500,000. Staff is recommending use of a portion of this reserve 
fund to cover the STPURWE CCOs. 
 
 

73



RiedingerConsulting   

Project Management & Construction Consulting  

This is a CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION, subject to attorney-client privilege, attorney work-product privilege.  It is 
intended only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is addressed.  

MEMO 
To: Mike Cortez  

From: Constance Riedinger  

Date: September 25, 2024 

Re: Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion – Remaining PCO’s to be 
Issued as a Unilateral Change Order 

Background 
 

As of May 2024, there were 6 outstanding PCO’s on the project, as shown in Attachment 1.  
On May 13, 2024, Myers sent another settlement offer to the District for the remaining 6 PCO’s totaling 
$486,000, as shown in the column titled “Myers Proposed Settlement as of 5/13/24.”  The District made 
a counter offer in June 2024 of $225,000, which Myers verbally accepted.  However, when the District 
issued Change Orders 69 and 70 for these PCO’s, Myers added release language that was not 
acceptable to the District.  As a result, the District has decided to issue a unilateral Change Order to 
Myers totaling $203,700 for the 6 remaining PCO’s, as shown in Attachment 1 and as discussed below. 
 

 Remaining PCO’s as of May 2024 
 
PCO 296 - SWPPP for 2022 and 2023 
 
On July 6, 2023, Myers requested $138,616.93 for costs it says were expended for the maintenance of 
the SWPPP plan for the 2022 and 2023 seasons.  A review of the Job Cost report backup provided and 
the Kennedy Jenks (KJ) daily inspection reports indicate that this was not the case.  
 
The job cost backup that Myers provided with PCO 296 showed that the costs charged were associated 
with two codes: Site Maintenance and Silt Fence.  The majority of the Site Maintenance hours were 
expended in 2022.  The compensable time extensions paid by the District in Change Orders No. 14 and 
22 cover Myers’ additional costs expended through 10/9/2022.  Additionally, KJ’s daily inspection reports 
noted that the work performed on the dates charged in PCO 296 as Site Maintenance was contract or 
change order work.  Similarly, the hours charged to the Silt Fence job cost code, although expended in 
2023, were for dates on which KJ reported contract or change order work being performed. The costs 
associated with the Silt Fence code totaled approximately $25,000.   
 
The District acknowledges that Myers continued to perform some remaining contract and change order 
work on the project in 2023 and may have incurred some additional costs to maintain the SWPPP.  To 
resolve PCO 296, the District agrees to pay Myers $10,000 which is based on 40 hours per month labor 
costs for 3 months to maintain the SWPPP in the winter months.   
 
PCO 374 – Changes/Modifications to AC and Gravel CCO’s 
 
On July 12, 2023, Myers requested $586,275.39 and 73 days for Paving and Gravel Additions and 
modifications that Myers said the District requested as they were finalizing the site for completion. PCO 

74



RiedingerConsulting  Memo_Remaining PCOs to Unilateral CCO 
September 25, 2024   Page 2 

This is a CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION, subject to attorney-client privilege, attorney work-product privilege.  It is 
intended only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is addressed 

374 included pricing of 73 Extra Work Reports (EWR’s), the corresponding T & M Tags showing the 
labor and equipment utilized on the requested days, and invoices to support the material costs included 
in the EWR’s.  Myers stated that this request was in addition to the $595,770 included in Change Orders 
No. 54 and 55. 
 
After a thorough review of the EWR’s and backup, KJ’s daily inspection reports, and KJ’s annotations on 
the Civil Grading Plan, C-5, the District determined that the additional $586,275.39 requested by Myers 
included contract work and the scope of work paid for in Change Orders No. 54 and 55.  After making 
adjustments for the scope already paid for and for credits that Myers did not include in PCO 374, the 
remaining value of the paving and gravel changes in PCO 374 was $50,000. The District and its 
consultants had two Meet and Confer meetings with Myers to review the scope covered in the EWR’s in 
PCO 374 vs. the scope included in Change Orders No. 54 and 55, but did not come to any agreement.   
 
The District acknowledges that it made minor changes to the paving and gravel modifications included in 
Change Orders No. 54 and 55.  These changes were made before Myers had constructed the scope of 
work in Change Orders No. 54 and 55.  Based on KJ’s measurements of the quantity of the items it 
annotated on C-5, the District estimates the cost of the changes to be a total of $71,000.  Additionally, 
the District acknowledges that 4 of the EWR’s in PCO 374, totaling $9,000, included additional work for 
the relocation of the sample pump at the CCC box and for repairing a water pipe leak at PC #3, which it 
requested.  The District agrees to pay Myers a total of $80,000 for PCO 374 and extend the contract 
completion date by 73 days, for paving and gravel changes made to the scope of work in Change 
Orders No. 54 and 55 and for the relocation of the sample pump at the CCC box and water pipe leak 
repair at PC#3.  
 
PCO 389 – Additional PRV’s on the New Potable Water Distribution Main 
 
On July 13, 2023, Myers requested $133,346.31 and 21 days for the installation of pressure reducing 
valves (PRV’s) on the new potable water line as directed by the District.  PCO 389 included pricing of 21 
EWR’s for dates in March, April, May, and June 2023.   
 
After a thorough review of the EWR’s and backup, KJ’s daily inspection reports, Myers’ daily reports, and 
discussions with District staff, the District found many issues with the costs included in PCO 389, 
including: 

• Labor overcharges for hours not shown in Certified Payroll 
• Charges for days when no Myers work was scheduled 
• Charges included in other PCO’s (double dip) 
• Charges for work not related to the additional PRV’s 

 
The additional PRV’s were installed in March and April 2023.  The EWR’s Myers included for May 2023 
were for correcting or repairing its faulty work.  The District met with Myers to discuss the issues it found 
in the EWR’s included in PCO 389.  In its 5/13/24 Proposed Settlement, Myers agreed to settle PCO 389 
for $85,000.   
 
After adjusting the EWR’s for the issues it found, the District determined that the value of the additional 
work to install the PRV’s on the new water line was $57,450.  During discussions with Myers to settle 
PCO 389, the District agreed to pay $12,500, half of the cost to correct the potable water cross 

75



RiedingerConsulting  Memo_Remaining PCOs to Unilateral CCO 
September 25, 2024   Page 3 

This is a CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION, subject to attorney-client privilege, attorney work-product privilege.  It is 
intended only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is addressed 

contamination issue caused by Myers’ tying into the incorrect water line.  In total, the District agrees to 
pay Myers $70,000 for PCO 389 and extend the contract completion date by 21 days.  
 
PCO 395 – HDPE Escalation 
 
On July 20,2022, Myers requested $89,381.20 for the Core & Main HDPE Cost Escalations Related to 
Delay.  Myers included a spreadsheet with the request that calculated the escalation for each Core & 
Main invoice, comparing the original sale price to the increased sale price for each item on the invoice.  
Myers provided the Core & Main invoices which showed the increased sale price, but did not provide any 
support showing the original sale price on which the escalation amount for each item was based.   
 
After a thorough review of Myers’ spreadsheet and the associated Core & Main invoices, the District 
formally rejected Myers’ request in a letter dated July 28, 2023. The District’s review of the HDPE pipe 
escalation spreadsheet identified that a large portion of the costs were included in Change Order No. 56 
for the completed costs of the Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Relocation.   
 
In response, Myers submitted a claim for the HDPE Escalation costs on August 8, 2023.  The District 
held a Meet & Confer on August 24, 2023 at which the District offered to pay 50% of Myers’ requested 
escalation costs (HDPE and Labor).  Myers countered with an offer to reduce its HDPE Escalation 
Request and Labor Escalation Request to a total of $115,000 (from a total of $140,741.25).  The District 
did not accept the counteroffer. In its December 7, 2023 settlement offer, Myers reduced its HDPE 
escalation costs to $38,411.22, after “correcting discrepancies.”  However, Myers increased the HDPE 
escalation costs to $44,000 in its 5/14/24 Settlement Offer.   
 
Based on its review of Myers’ HDPE Cost Escalation Summary spreadsheet, the District identified a total 
of nearly $56,000 of escalation costs for piping associated with the Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Relocation 
covered by Change Orders No. 37, 44, and 56 and $4,792 of escalation costs that were paid in Change 
Order No. 68 for PCO 314.  The remainder of the HDPE escalation costs total $10,526.   
 
Myers’ claim for escalation costs was based on delays to the project.  The District granted Myers a total 
of 297 calendar days (cd) during the project for delays, of which 189 cd, or 63.6%, were compensable.  
The District agrees to pay the compensable portion (63.6%) of the remainder of the HDPE Escalation 
Costs plus 15% markup, for a total of $7,700 to settle PCO 395. 
 
PCO 396 – Labor Escalation 
 
On May 11, 2023, Myers requested $51,360.55 for Labor Escalation related to PG&E Delays.  The 
information provided by Myers to support its calculation of the Labor Escalation was not adequate.  The 
District rejected Myers’ request in a letter dated July 28, 2023.  As discussed above in PCO 395, Myers 
submitted a claim on August 8, 2023 for the Labor and HDPE Escalation Costs.  In its December 7, 
2023 settlement offer, Myers reduced its Labor Escalation claim to $40,000.  After the District shared its 
position on the Labor Escalation costs at a Meet and Confer, Myers reduced its settlement offer to 
$25,000 in its 5/14/23 proposed settlement offer.  
 
Myers’ Labor Escalation claim was based on 2.13% escalation applied to all labor hours expended on 
the project in 2022.  Union labor rates increase on July 1st of a calendar year, so only the labor hours 
expended after July 1st should have been included in Myers claim.  The District asked Myers to provide 

76



RiedingerConsulting  Memo_Remaining PCOs to Unilateral CCO 
September 25, 2024   Page 4 

This is a CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION, subject to attorney-client privilege, attorney work-product privilege.  It is 
intended only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is addressed 

backup for its labor hours for the second half of 2022 only, but Myers did not. The 2.13% escalation rate 
that Myers applied was lower than the actual wage increases on July 1, 2022, which ranged from 3.3% 
to 3.7% for the trades on the project.   
 
Since Myers did not provide the information requested by the District, the District used Certified Payroll 
Reports to calculate the total number of labor hours expended in 2022, which was 18,523.5.  The actual 
certified labor hours in 2022 were 1,659 hours less than the 2022 labor hours Myers claimed.  
 
Although Myers claimed that the 2022 labor hours, used in its labor escalation calculation, excluded 
extra work hours, this is not possible since the total hours claimed were higher than the total hours in 
certified payroll.  The District asked Myers to remove any labor hours included in PCO’s from its labor 
escalation calculation, because the PCO’s already reflected the escalated labor rates for work performed 
after July 1, 2022.  Myers did not revise its labor escalation calculation to remove PCO hours.  Therefore, 
the District calculated the 2022 labor hours in various PCO’s, which reduced the total number of 2022 
labor hours for which Myers could claim escalation by an additional 5,545 hours.   
 
Applying Myers’ 2.13% labor escalation rate to the adjusted 2022 labor hours reduced the labor 
escalation costs to $33,104.  The compensable portion of this, 63.6%, is $21,000.  The District also 
calculated labor escalation costs using the labor hours in certified payroll for only the second half of 
2022, without PCO hours removed, which yielded $22,779 and a compensable amount of $14,487.  To 
settle PCO 396, the District agrees to pay $21,000 for Labor Escalation costs due to compensable 
delays. 
 
PCO 397 – Fencing Adds 
 
On August 31, 2023, Myers requested $30,132.69 for installing an additional 345 lineal feet of 6 ft. high 
chain link fence.  The District rejected Myers request because it thought the fencing was shown on the 
Contract drawings.  In December 2023, Myers offered to reduce its request to $20,000, then offered to 
reduce it further in its 5/14/24 Settlement Offer to $15,000.   
 
Upon further review of the Contract Documents, the District agrees that the additional fencing was not 
indicated clearly.  However, the District indicated that the amount of additional fencing installed is 
approximately 225 lineal feet.  The District agrees to pay Myers $15,000 for the additional fencing in 
PCO 397.   

77



10/3/2024 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  

NITZBERG 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, McInnis 
Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc 
Committee, SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA, 
Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis 
Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Development Ad Hoc 
Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

YEZMAN 
Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

78



     AGENDA: ITEM 7A  
DATE: October 3, 2024  

REVISED 09062023 

BOARD MEMBER CONFERENCE/ 

 MEETING/WEBINAR ATTENDANCE REQUEST

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________ 

Board Members to register for Webinars and Meetings 

    YES  NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference only:        

Board Directors to make their own Hotel Reservations and book their own 

transportation including airfare, taxi and/or shuttles. 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

79



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\10032024\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

10/3/2024 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 

Agenda Item 7B

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting

 Verbal Report

□ Presentation

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102


	Agenda 10032024
	1 Public Comment
	2 Closed Session
	3A Board Minutes 09192024
	3B Warrant List
	3C Award of Contract for Center Pivots 3 and 4
	3D Award of CM Contract for Sewer Main Rehab 2024
	Letter Proposal LGVSD 2024 Sewer Main Rehab 09-16-24.pdf
	Sewer Main Rehabilitation 2024 Scope 09-15-24.pdf
	Project Understanding
	Project Approach
	A. PRE-CONSTRUCTION PHASE
	C. QUALITY ASSURANCE
	D. POST-CONSTRUCTION PHASE
	CLAIMS MANAGEMENT



	3E Award of CM Contract for Combined Smith Ranch and PS Lighting Projects
	3F Supplemental Will Serve Letter for Talus Reserve
	Talus Reserve Supplemental Will Serve Letter 10-03-2024.pdf
	Re: Will–Serve Letter


	3G John Duckett Force Main Access Structures
	3H Standby Generator System Installation
	4.1 General Manager Report
	5 Unilateral Change Orders for STPURWE
	6 Board Member Reports
	7A Board Member Meeting-Conference Attendance Request 2024
	7B Board Agenda Item Requests
	8 Various Industry Articles



